
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: September 11, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Meeting 

September 11, 2018, at 7 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.cityofpalmer.org 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a. Introduction of Ordinance No. 18-006: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Title 17 by Repealing
Chapter 17.88 and Section 17.08.038 Bed and Breakfast and Enacting Chapter 17.89 Short Term
Rentals ................................................................................................................ Page 3 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a. August 14, 2018, Regular Meeting ......................................................................... Page 17 

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS
1. Presentation of a Proclamation to Meghan DeLand Recognizing September as Global Pulmonary

Fibrosis Awareness Month .......................................................................................... Page 21 
2. Presentation from the American Society of Civil Engineers Recognizing the City of Palmer Airport

Runway Improvement Project

F. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report ................................................................................................ Page 23 
2. City Clerk’s Report ..................................................................................................... Page 27 
3. Mayor’s Report .......................................................................................................... Page 33 
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

H. PUBLIC HEARING
1. Resolution No. 18-020: Appropriating $61,000.00 for Public Safety Building Repair and Related

Improvements and Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a Contract with Goertz
Construction, Inc. for the Repair and Improvements to the Public Safety Building in an Amount Not
to Exceed $150,000.00............................................................................................... Page 35 

2. Resolution No. 18-021: Authorizing the City Manager to Accept and Execute a Grant in the Amount
of $487,200.00 from the Federal Aviation Administration for Airport Snow Removal Equipment
Purchase, Appropriating $503,700.00 for Airport Snow Removal Equipment, and Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Two Contracts for the Purchase of Snow Removal Equipment for Airport
Operations with NC Machine in the Amount of $266,920.83 and Bob’s Services in the Amount of
$247,784.25 .............................................................................................................. Page 41 

I. ACTION MEMORANDA

Mayor Edna B. DeVries 
Deputy Mayor Richard W. Best 
Council Member Steve Carrington 
Council Member Linda Combs 
Council Member Sabrena Combs 
Council Member David Fuller 
Council Member Pete LaFrance 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Clerk Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Manager Nathan Wallace 

Page 1 of 79

http://www.cityofpalmer.org/


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: September 11, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

J. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
K. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
L. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
M. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

Tentative 2018 Palmer City Council Meetings 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

Sept 25 Regular 7 pm  

Oct 8 Special  6 pm Election Certification 

Oct 9 Regular 7 pm  

Oct 16 Special 6 pm 1st Budget Public Hearing 

Oct 23 Special 6 pm Budget 
Oct 30 Special 6 pm Budget 
Nov 6 Special 6 pm Budget 
Nov 13 Regular 7 pm  
Nov 20 Special 6 pm Budget 
Nov 27 Special 6 pm Budget 
Nov 27 Regular 7 pm  
Dec 4 Special 6 pm Budget 
Dec 11 Special  6 pm Budget 

Dec 11 Regular 7 pm Budget Adoption (2nd Public 
Hearing) 

 

Page 2 of 79



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Ordinance No. 18-006 

 
Subject:  Amending Palmer Municipal Code Title 17 by Repealing Chapter 17.88 and Section 17.08.038 
Bed and Breakfast and Enacting Chapter 17.89 Short Term Rentals 
 
Agenda of: September 11, 2018 - Introduction 
 
Council Action: ☐ Adopted  ☐ Amended: ___________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
  

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    

X  Finance  

 08/23/2018 
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
X Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 3 of 79



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Ordinance No. 18-006 
 Planning and Zoning Minutes of August 16, 2018 (draft copy) 

 
Summary Statement: 
 
The text amendment will repeal PMC Chapter 17.88, Bed and Breakfast in its entirety and enact PMC 
Chapter 17.89 Short Term Rentals and delete PMC 17.08.038 Bed and breakfast in Definitions. 
 
Background:  
 
Staff has received several inquiries from city residents asking if short term rentals are a permitted use in 
Palmer.  Of those residents who inquired, the concept of a short-term rental varied from renting a house 
to renting a couch or bedroom for one or several nights. Researching other communities, short-term 
rentals are considered to include the rental of a bedroom, house, or couch for less than 30 consecutive 
days with or without the owner being present and with or without providing meals.  After a review of PMC 
17.88 Bed and Breakfast, staff found our current code to be inadequate in addressing the housing 
demands of short-term rentals within the community. 
 
The Palmer Comprehensive Plan in Chapter 6 Goal 2 addresses the importance of maintaining high quality 
residential neighborhoods and promoting a diverse range of quality housing.  Chapter 6, Goal 6, Objectives 
A & B of the Plan support efforts to promote new and improved accommodations in downtown to 
encourage more visitor spending and make downtown “the place to be”.  Chapter 7, Goal 4 of the Plan 
speaks to strengthening Palmer as a tourism destination and stopping point for travel through the 
southern Matanuska-Susitna area.    
 
The discussion of short-term rentals was introduced and discussed at the Board of Economic Development 
at the June, July and August meetings.  Short-term rentals were also introduced at the July 19th Planning 
and Zoning meeting.  The Planning and Zoning Commission (Commission) discussed the benefits and 
concerns, impacts on neighborhoods and ways to ensure short-term rentals have a positive economic 
impact on the community. In comparison, the Commission also reviewed PMC 17.88 Bed and Breakfast 
and discussed its relevance to short-term rentals.  
 
As directed by the Commission, staff prepared draft language for an ordinance to incorporate bed and 
breakfast establishments into a comprehensive short-term rental chapter.  Comments from the BED were 
considered in the formulation of PMC 17.89, Short Term Rentals.  At the August 16, 2018 Planning and 
Zoning meeting, the Commission voted with four in favor and one opposed to move forward to City Council 
a recommendation for adoption of the proposed draft Ordinance repealing PMC 17.88 Bed and Breakfast 
in its entirety and enacting PMC 17.89 Short Term Rentals.  
 
In addition to more robust definitions a table outlining where the various types of short term rentals would 
be allowed can be found in section 17.89.070(F).  Type 1 additionally has a lot size requirement of 20,000 
square feet before being considered for a conditional use which can be found in section 17.89.080(D).        
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 18-006 Amending Palmer Municipal Code Title 17 by Repealing Chapter 17.88 and 
Section 17.08.038 Bed and Breakfast and Enacting Chapter 17.89 Short Term Rentals. 
 
   
 
 

Page 4 of 79



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 1 of 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Ordinance No. 18-006 

 
An Ordinance of the Palmer City Council Amending Palmer Municipal Code Title 17 by 
Repealing Chapter 17.88 and Section 17.08.038 Bed and Breakfast and Enacting 
Chapter 17.89 Short Term Rentals  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission (commission) proposes and recommends 
text amendments as necessary to Title 17 Zoning to ensure regulations and standards are 
applicable to the current needs of the community; and 

 
WHEREAS, the commission has reviewed and determined Palmer Municipal Code Chapter 

17.88 Bed and Breakfast insufficient to adequately address the current residential housing 
demands of the community for short term rentals; and 

 
WHEREAS, the commission has reviewed and discussed short term rental language from 

other similar communities and has drafted code language to help meet the increasing short term 
rental demands of the community.   
 
THE CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA, ORDAINS: 
 
 Section 1. Classification. This ordinance shall be permanent in nature and shall be 
incorporated into the Palmer Municipal Code.  
 
 Section 2. Severability. If any provisions of this ordinance or application thereof to any 
person or circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the application to 
the other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 
 

Section 3. Palmer Municipal Code Section 17.08.038 is hereby repealed (deleted language 
is stricken): 
 
17.08.038 Bed and breakfast. 
“Bed and breakfast” means an owner-occupied residential dwelling with up to three guest rooms 
which provides overnight accommodations and breakfast to registered transient guests. 
 

Section 4. Chapter 17.88 Bed and Breakfast is hereby repealed (deleted language is 
stricken): 
 

Chapter 17.88 
BED AND BREAKFAST 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager 

Date: September 11, 2018 
Public Hearing:  

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 5 of 79



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 2 of 9 

Sections: 
17.88.010  Intent. 
17.88.020  Application and approval. 
17.88.030  General provisions. 
17.88.080  Transfer of property. 

17.88.010 Intent. 
This chapter sets out the criteria under which a bed and breakfast may be incorporated into 
certain zoning districts. Bed and breakfasts help preserve existing housing stock and 
neighborhood character while providing efficient use of larger homes and providing flexibility to 
respond to changing household sizes and needs. The provisions set forth in the chapter help 
ensure the preservation of the character, integrity and property values of the surrounding areas 
within which these facilities are located and maintained. (Ord. 07-033 § 4, 2007) 

17.88.020 Application and approval. 
A. An application for a bed and breakfast permit shall be initiated by the owner on a form
prescribed by the zoning administrator. For the purposes of this chapter, the owner shall mean
any person named on the deed, a contract purchaser, or the beneficiary of a trust named on the
deed.

B. The permit shall be accompanied by the notarized affidavit affirming that at least one owner
occupies the dwelling being used as the bed and breakfast and that the bed and breakfast will
conform to the requirements of the permit and the requirements of this chapter.

C. A nonrefundable fee of $50.00 shall accompany the application.

D. The zoning administrator shall review the application for code compliance within 30 calendar
days.

E. The zoning administrator shall notify the applicant in writing of approval or denial. Approved
applications shall be issued a bed and breakfast permit.

17.88.030 General provisions. 
The following provisions apply to the operation of bed and breakfast: 

A. The bed and breakfast use shall be an accessory use to the principal use of the dwelling.

B. A residential dwelling incorporating a bed and breakfast as an accessory use shall be a
minimum of 2,000 square feet.

C. The length of a stay within a bed and breakfast shall be a maximum of 21 days per calendar
year, and documentation verifying the length of stay of each guest, such as a registration ledger
or receipts, shall be made available to the city upon request.

D. No food preparation or cooking for guests shall be conducted within any bedroom made
available for rent.

E. All guest rooms shall be contained within the principal dwelling on the lot.

F. One additional parking space for each bedroom rented shall be provided, in addition to the
parking requirements required in Chapter 17.64 PMC, Parking and Loading.

Page 6 of 79

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/cgi/menuCompile.pl#a17x88x010
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/cgi/menuCompile.pl#a17x88x020
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/cgi/menuCompile.pl#a17x88x030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/cgi/menuCompile.pl#a17x88x080


_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 3 of 9 

 
G. The exterior of the building shall not reflect the operation of a bed and breakfast there, except 
that one sign, not to exceed four square feet in area, is permitted. 
 
H. A bed and breakfast may be developed in either an existing or a new dwelling unit. 
 
I. A bed and breakfast shall not be permitted on any lot with an accessory dwelling unit or child 
care center. Other home occupations shall be allowed, subject to existing regulations. 
 
J. Bed and breakfasts shall conform to all applicable codes, laws, and regulations. 
 
K. For purposes of securing financing, a potential owner may request and receive a letter of pre-
approval from the city indicating property is eligible for a bed and breakfast permit if the potential 
owner completes the application process and construction in accordance with this section. 
 
17.88.080 Transfer of property. 
A bed and breakfast permit is not transferable to any other property or person. When a property 
with a bed and breakfast is sold or otherwise transferred, the new owner must apply for a permit 
as set forth in PMC 17.88.020 within 60 days from the date of transfer. 
 

Section 5. Chapter 17.89 Short Term Rentals is hereby enacted to read as follows (new 
language is underlined): 
 

Chapter 17.89 
SHORT TERM RENTALS 

 
Sections: 
17.89.010 Purpose and intent. 
17.89.020 Definitions. 
17.89.030 Short term rental classifications. 
17.89.040 Application and approval. 
17.89.050 Annual review. 
17.89.060 General provisions. 
17.89.070 Standards. 
17.89.080 Standards for a conditional use permit. 
17.89.090 Signs. 
17.89.100 Violations; enforcement. 
17.89.110 Appeals – Generally. 
17.89.120 Appeal notice and hearing before commission. 
17.89.130 Written statements.  
 
17.89.010 Purpose and intent. 
The purpose of this article is to provide for the regulation of short-term rentals in certain zoning 
districts within the city in order to preserve neighborhood character while encouraging economic 
activity and diversity, and to promote public health, safety, and welfare. 
 
17.89.020 Definitions. 
“Bed and breakfast” means a private residential property providing up to 15 guest rooms for 
accommodation of travelers with breakfast in a common eating area.  
 

Page 7 of 79



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 4 of 9 

“Hosting platform” means a person or entity that provides a means through which an owner 
may advertise and offer for rent a short-term rental to the general public. 
 
“Owner” means any person named on the deed, a contract purchaser, or the beneficiary of a 
trust named on the deed. 
 
“Owner occupied” means owner must reside on the property and be present at the property 
for the duration of any short-term rental. 
 
“Operation of” or “operating” means the short-term rental has been rented by or on behalf of 
the owner to the general public for compensation for transient occupancy. "Operation of" or 
"operating" a short-term rental does not include mere advertisement of or offering to rent short-
term rental(s). 
 
“Responsible person” means the person responsible for addressing all maintenance, nuisance, 
and safety concerns related to a short-term rental. 
 
“Short term rental” means a residential dwelling unit(s) that is rented out for compensation on 
a temporary basis for a period of less than 30 consecutive days. 
 
17.89.030 Short term rental classifications. 
Short terms rentals are classified as: 
 
Type-1: A short term rental of one or more bedrooms in an owner-occupied dwelling while the 
owner is occupying the same dwelling unit for the entire rental period. 
 
Type-2: A short term rental shall mean a single family or duplex residential property 
where short term lodging is provided to only one group at a time per dwelling unit. The owner 
may not reside on the property or is not present at the property for the duration of any short-
term rental.   
 
Type-3: A short term rental that is not owner-occupied and shall mean a multi-family residential 
property where short term lodging is provided to only one group at a time per dwelling unit. 
The owner does not reside on the property or is not present at the property for the duration of 
any short-term rental. 
 
Type-4: A bed and breakfast homestay establishment means an owner-occupied residential 
property where short term lodging is provided that contains no more than five guest rooms 
and where breakfast service may be provided to overnight guests only. The owner must reside 
on the property and be present at the property for the duration of any short-term rental. The 
property may be rented out to multiple short-term lodging groups at a time. 
 
Type-5: A bed and breakfast inn means a resident managed residential property where short-
term lodging is provided that contains no more than 15 guest rooms and where breakfast 
service may be provided to overnight guests only. The resident manager must reside on the 
property and be present at the property for the duration of any short-term rental. The property 
may be rented out to multiple short-term lodging groups at a time.   
 
17.89.040 Application and approval. 
A. An application for a short-term rental permit shall be initiated by the owner on a form 
prescribed by the zoning administrator. For the purposes of this chapter, the owner shall mean 

Page 8 of 79



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 5 of 9 

any person named on the deed, a contract purchaser, or the beneficiary of a trust named on the 
deed and is valid for a period of one year. 
 
B. All applications for a permit shall be accompanied by a payment of the fee(s) according to the 
current, adopted budget. 
 
C. The zoning administrator shall review the application for code compliance within 30 calendar 
days. 
 
D. Short-term rentals shall conform to all applicable codes, laws, and regulations. 
 
E. A site plan with a description of the short-term rental, including street address, number of 
bedrooms, and number of off-street parking spaces available for guests' use. 
 
F. The zoning administrator shall notify the applicant in writing of approval or denial. Approved 
applications shall be issued a short-term rental permit.  
 
17.89.050 Annual renewal. 
Application for renewal of a short-term permit and payment of the renewal fee shall be made 
before February 1 of the applicable year. 
 
17.89.060 General provisions. 
The following provisions apply to the operation of short-term rentals: 
 
A. It is unlawful for any person to operate within the city a short-term rental without having 
been approved by the Department of Community Development. A separate registration shall be 
required for each short-term rental. 
 
B. Short-term rentals shall conform to all applicable codes, laws, and regulations. 
 
C. A short-term rental shall not be permitted on any lot with an accessory dwelling unit or child 
care center. Other home occupations shall be allowed, subject to existing regulations. 
 
D. A short-term rental permit is not transferable to any other property or person. When a property 
with a short-term rental is sold or otherwise transferred, the new owner must apply for a permit 
as set forth in PMC 17.89.040 within 60 days from the date of transfer.  
 
E. Additional notice requirements. For registrations and registration renewals of Type-1, Type-
2 or Type-4 short term rentals as defined in PMC 17.89.030 in R-1 and R-2 residential zoning 
districts, the applicant must give notice on a form provided by the city to each residence 
adjacent, including those residences adjacent across a public right-of-way and properties 
connected to the applicant's property by property corners. The notice must include a description 
of the proposed use and the name, address, telephone number and email address (if any) of 
the responsible person. 
 
17.89.070 Standards 
A. One additional parking space for each bedroom or dwelling unit rented shall be provided, in 
addition to the parking requirements required in PMC 17.64, Parking and Loading. No on-street 
parking shall be allowed for short term rental facility guests. 
 

Page 9 of 79



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 6 of 9 

B. The exterior of the building shall not reflect the operation of a short-term rental there, except 
that one sign, not to exceed four square feet in area, is permitted in all residential districts. 
 
C. The length of a stay within a short-term rental shall be for a period of less than 30 days per 
calendar year, and documentation verifying the length of stay of each guest, such as a registration 
ledger or receipts, shall be made available to the city upon request. 
 
D. The responsible person shall be available at all times the property is being rented.  A sign 
must be posted conspicuously in the common area of each unit and shall contain all of the 
following information: 

1. The name and contact information of the owner and/or responsible person; and 
 
2. The license number of the short-term rental facility; and  
 
3. The occupancy limits and requirements set forth in the license. 

 
E. The owner of the short-term rental must ensure that use of the short-term rental by guests 
is in compliance with the noise provisions of PMC 8.36. 
 
F. The operation of a short-term rental is permitted as indicated in the following districts:    
 

 Type I Type II Type III Type IV (Bed 
and Breakfast 
Homestay) 

Type V (Bed and 
Breakfast Inn) 

R-1 CUP N N N N 
R-1E CUP CUP CUP CUP CUP 
R-2 P P N P CUP 
R-3 P P P P CUP 
R-4 P P P P P 
Agri P P P P P 
C-L P P P P P 
C-G P P P P P 

 
G. The licensee shall comply with the quiet hours established in PMC 8.36.025. 
 
H. The licensee will comply with all building, electrical and other city codes and ordinances. 
 
I. Functions such as meetings, receptions, weddings and other social events provided for 
compensation or held by guests are not permitted as part of the short-term rental use unless 
such residential property is located in an agriculture district or commercial zoning districts. 
 
J. The license number and occupancy limit shall be included in all marketing materials, 
advertisements, and online listings for the short-term rental. 
 
K. A residential dwelling incorporating a Type-4 as an accessory use shall be a minimum of 2,000 
square feet. 
 
17.89.080 Standards for a conditional use permit. 
In addition to the requirements of PMC 17.72.050 the following standards shall be met for a 
conditional use permit, if required:  

Page 10 of 79



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 7 of 9 

 
A. The use shall not unreasonably interfere with or cause undue annoyance to residential uses 
by reason of visual appearance, bright or flashing lights, odor, noise, dust, traffic, or other 
negative effects. 
 
B. Sufficient access is provided. 
 
C. Conditions may be imposed by the commission with respect to location, screening, fencing, 
buffering, hours of operation, traffic, landscaping, setbacks or otherwise if reasonably necessary 
to satisfy these standards.  
 
D. A Type-1 short-term rental must be on a minimum lot size of 20,000 square feet. 
 
17.89.090 Signs. 
In agriculture and commercial districts, signs for a short-term rental shall meet PMC 14.08.080. 
 
17.89.100 Violations; enforcement. 
A. Registration suspension or revocation. The zoning administrator may suspend or revoke a 
short-term rental permit when the licensee commits one or more of the following acts or 
omissions: 

1. Failure to comply with any provision of this title. 
 
2. Operating or allowing the operation of the short-term rental in such a manner as to 
create a public nuisance, cause a breach of the peace, constitute a danger to the public 
health, safety, welfare or morals, or interfere with the rights of abutting property 
owners. 
 
3. The securing of the registration by fraud or misrepresentation, to specifically include 
false or incorrect information on the registration application. 

 
B. Procedure.  Should the zoning administrator decide to suspend or revoke a registration, the 
licensee will be given notice and an opportunity to respond following the procedures in this 
subsection, except that should the zoning administrator determine the short term rental or its 
operation present a safety hazard or require immediate remedy, the zoning administrator may 
order operation of the short term rental to cease immediately. 

1. The licensee will be notified in writing by the zoning administrator at least seven days 
prior to the action contemplated and the reasons therefore. 
 
2. Upon receipt of the notice, the licensee may request a meeting with the zoning 
administrator. Such request must be in writing and must be received by the zoning 
administrator within seven days of the licensee's receipt of the notice. Failure on the 
part of the licensee to request in writing a meeting and within the specified time period 
shall be a waiver of the licensee’s right to a meeting. 
 
3. If a meeting is requested by the licensee, the zoning administrator will set a time, 
date and place and will so notify the licensee, in writing. 
 
4. When a meeting is conducted, the city will present the evidence supporting the 
contemplated action. The zoning administrator may request evidence be presented by 
other parties. The licensee may present evidence. The zoning administrator will take all 

Page 11 of 79



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 8 of 9 

evidence admitted under advisement and once a decision has been made the zoning 
administrator will notify the licensee of the findings and decision in writing. 

 
C. Appeal. Any person aggrieved by a decision of the zoning administrator will have the right 
to appeal to the commission by following the procedures.  
 
17.89.110 Appeals – Generally.  
A. Appeals – Standing. Any person or persons aggrieved by an action or determination taken 
under this chapter may appeal said action or determination. 
 
B. Jurisdiction. Appeals of actions and determinations of the zoning administrator are heard by 
the commission. The commission’s action may be appealed pursuant to PMC Chapter 17.98 by 
any party, including a city official.  
 
C. Time Limitation. An appeal of a decision of the zoning administrator or of the commission must 
be filed within 20 calendar days of the action or determination being appealed. The right of appeal 
is forfeited unless a written appeal is delivered to the clerk within 20 calendar days of the zoning 
administrator’s or commission’s action or determination. Computation of the time period for filing 
an appeal shall commence with the date on which the action or determination is mailed or 
delivered to the parties involved. Any decision not appealed within this time limit shall become 
final.  
 
D. Applications. The appeal application for each appeal shall be filed with the clerk, on a form 
prescribed by the city clerk and contain at least the following information: 

1. The name and address of the appellant and that of the appellant’s representative, if 
appellant is represented; and 
 
2. A description of the action or determination from which the appeal is sought; and  
 
3. The reason for the appeal which must show a grievance to the applicant. 

 
E. Fees.  All applications for appeals shall be accompanied by a payment of a non-refundable fee 
according to the current, adopted budget. 
 
17.89.120 Appeal notice and hearing before commission. 
A. Upon receipt of a valid application appealing an action or determination of the zoning 
administrator, the clerk shall schedule an appeal hearing before the commission to be held within 
45 days. All parties to the action or determination being appealed shall be provided with written 
notice not less than 15 days prior to the appeal hearing. 
 
B. Written statements are to be submitted to the clerk as follows: 

1. An appellant may file a written statement summarizing the facts and setting forth 
pertinent points and authorities in support of the points contained in the notice of appeal, 
provided such statement must be filed not less than 12 days prior to the date set for the 
appeal hearing. 

 
2. Any interested party wishing to file a written statement in rebuttal to the appeal may 
do so, provided such statement must be filed not less than six days prior to the appeal 
hearing date.  

 
 

Page 12 of 79

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/Palmer/#!/Palmer17/Palmer1798.html#17.98


_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Ordinance No. 18-006 Page 9 of 9 

C. At the hearing the order of presentation is as follows: 
1. The zoning administrator shall summarize the issues and state his/her decision. 
 
2. The applicant shall present his/her evidence, including witnesses and documents. 
 
3. The zoning administrator shall present his/her evidence, including witnesses and 
documents. 
 
4. The licensee may close his/her presentation. 
 
5. The zoning administrator may close his/her presentation. 

 
D. The commission, the applicants and the administration may question any witness. Any person 
may be represented by counsel. The applicant must prove the facts by a preponderance of the 
evidence. All hearings shall be tape-recorded. Formal rules of evidence need not be followed. 
 
E. A hearing, and any reconvening thereof, shall be open to the public. 
 
F. Within 15 days following the hearing, the commission shall issue its decision in the form of 
written findings of fact and conclusions of law. 
 
G. The findings of fact and conclusions of law shall reference specific evidence in the record and 
the controlling sections of this chapter and shall briefly explain the reasons for the decision. The 
commission may affirm, modify, vacate, set aside or reverse any decision brought before it for 
review, and may remand the case and direct the entry of such appropriate order, or require 
further proceedings to be had as may be justified under the circumstances. 
 
H. The findings of fact and conclusions of law shall be signed by the presiding officer and filed 
with the clerk, who shall promptly mail a copy to the appellant.  
 

Section 6. Effective Date. Ordinance No. 18-006 shall take effect upon adoption by the 
City of Palmer City Council.  
 
Passed and approved this _____ day of _____, 2018.  
 
 
 
 _________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

Page 13 of 79



Page 14 of 79



Page 15 of 79



Page 16 of 79



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: August 14, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 4 

 
City of Palmer, Alaska 

City Council Minutes 
Regular Meeting 
August 14, 2018 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on August 14, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska.  Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 
 Edna DeVries, Mayor Richard Best, Deputy Mayor  
 Steve Carrington Linda Combs  
 Sabrena Combs David Fuller 
 Pete LaFrance 
 
Staff in attendance were the following: 
 
 Nathan Wallace, City Manager Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 Michael Gatti, City Attorney  Angie Anderson, Deputy City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
1. Approval of Consent Agenda 

a. Introduction of Ordinance No. 18-005: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Title 14 Pertaining to 
Signs 

b. Resolution No. 18-019: Appointing Election Officials for the City of Palmer Regular Election on 
Tuesday, October 2, 2018 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a. March 6, 2018, City Council and Board of Economic Development Joint Meeting 
b. July 24, 2018, Regular Meeting 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Agenda, Consent Agenda, and Minutes 

Moved by: Fuller 
Seconded by: L. Combs 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, L. Combs, S. Combs, DeVries, Fuller, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 
E. REPORTS 

1. City Manager’s Report 
 

City Manager Wallace highlighted his written report and added he attended a meeting with the Mat-Su 
Borough to learn of their recent IT issues, malware, ransomware, and virus threats. 

Page 17 of 79



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: August 14, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 4 

Deputy Mayor Best requested the City Manager provide a report on the city’s policy pertaining to citizens 
being required to provide a copy of their driver’s license when setting up new utility accounts. 
 

2. City Clerk’s Report 
 

City Clerk Alley highlighted her written report and announced any address changes that needed to be made 
by voters could be done on the State of Alaska Division of Elections’ website.  
 

3. Mayor’s Report 
 

Mayor DeVries:  
• Highlighted her written report; 
• Recommended everyone be aware of possible address conflicts with the Division of Elections’ voter 

registration rolls due to PFD application being linked to voter registration; 
• Announced the Mat-Su Medical Plaza’s grand opening was to be held on August 28; and 
• Announced the Transportation Fair in Wasilla would be held on September 13 from 3:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
4. City Attorney’s Report 

 
None. 
 
F. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

 
Mrs. Debra McGhan, Alaska Avalanche Information Center Executive Director, invited the Council to attend 
the National Emergency Preparedness Month event at the Menard Sports Center September 29, from 10:00 
a.m. to 3:00 p.m. and requested the Council to approve AM 18-071. 
 
Mr. Ralph Baldwin asked for Council’s support by approving AM 18-071 as the funds would be used to provide 
education and weekly forecast, which would increase safety.  He thanked the Council for their past support. 
 
Mrs. Jenel Gagnon and Mr. Collin Christensen sang a song as thanks to the Council for the donated use of 
the Palmer Depot for their performance of Broadway Musicals. 
 
Mr. Mike Chmielewski commented anyone having questions on where to vote, on August 21, should vote at 
any polling place and use a question ballot; the meeting that the city manager spoke of attending was on 
the Radio Free Palmer website for anyone to listen to; and invasive vegetation was a concern for himself 
and his wife, noticed it was removed, and thanked the city employees for mowing it. 
  
Mr. Tom Roberson requested Council’s support for an emergency drain pipe to be installed in the local pools 
to aide in an emergency. 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Resolution No. 18-018: Appropriating a Grant Offer from the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
in an Amount up to $518,625.00 for Taxiway Maintenance and Related Improvements at the Warren 
“Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport 
 

City Manager Wallace reported the grant was accepted but funds needed to be appropriated. 
 
Mayor DeVries opened the public hearing on Resolution No. 18-018. Seeing no one come forward to speak 
and hearing no objection from the Council, the public hearing was closed. 
  

Page 18 of 79



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: August 14, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 4 

Main Motion: To Approve Resolution No. 18-018 
Moved by: L. Combs 

Seconded by: Best 
Action: Motion Carried 

In favor: Best, Carrington, L. Combs, S. Combs, DeVries, Fuller, LaFrance 
Opposed: None 

 
H. ACTION MEMORANDA 

1. Action Memorandum No. 18-071: Approving a Council Community Grant in the Amount of 
$4,000.00 to the Hatcher Pass Avalanche Center to Provide Educational Information to the Public 

 
Main Motion: To Approve Action Memorandum No. 18-071, as Amended 

Moved by: LaFrance 
Seconded by: Best 

Action: Motion Carried 
In favor: Best, Carrington, L. Combs, S. Combs, DeVries, Fuller, LaFrance 

Opposed: None 
 

Primary Amendment #1: To Award to $1,500.00 
Moved by: Best 

Seconded by:  
Action: Motion Failed for Lack of Second 

In favor:  
Opposed:  

 
Council Member LaFrance asked the amount not be reduced as he felt lives could be saved with furthering 
this program. Council Member L. Combs agreed the project was important and should be furthered, but in a 
future budget rather than over spend in the current budget. 
 

Primary Amendment #2: To Award $2,000.00 
Moved by: Fuller 

Seconded by: Best 
Action: Motion Carried 

In favor: Best, Carrington, L. Combs, DeVries, Fuller 
Opposed: S. Combs, LaFrance 

  
I. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
City Clerk Alley reported Items Placed on the Table were Mat-Su Emergency Preparedness Event Flyer, Tom 
Roberson’s letter of request for an emergency drain pipe in the Palmer public pool, and the Avalanche 
Information Center’s budget report. 
 
J. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Mr. Tom Roberson asked the Council to remember the 1964 earthquake and think ahead, to prepare for an 
emergency. 
 
K. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Council Member S. Combs thanked the Board of Economic Development for their hard work on the Palmer 
Depot Rental Policy, congratulated the Mat-Su Miners baseball team, and invited fellow Council Members to 
be judges at the Alaska State Fair Parade. 
 

Page 19 of 79



__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: August 14, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 4 

Council Member LaFrance stated interest in Palmer having rail trail cycling opportunities and would speak to 
Mat-Su Borough about possibilities. 
 
Deputy Mayor Best requested the Council nominate the Public Works Department, for the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Project, to the Alaska Municipal League for state level recognition; asked Council for support 
in creating a separate budget for public safety grant funds for the grater Palmer area; and asked the city 
manager for an update on creating a trail head in the Hidden Ranch Subdivision. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
Approved this____________ day of____________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 
___________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 

Page 20 of 79



 
PROCLAMATION 

 
RECOGNIZING PALMER PULMONARY FIBROSIS AWARENESS MONTH 

 
WHEREAS, pulmonary fibrosis is a serious disease that creates scarring (fibrosis) in the delicate lung tissue 
of affected patients causing progressive, incurable lung disease; and 
 
WHEREAS, pulmonary fibrosis progresses quickly, often causing limited quality of life, disability and/or 
death within a few short years; and 
 
WHEREAS, in many cases there is no identified cause of pulmonary fibrosis, which is referred to as idiopathic 
pulmonary fibrosis (IPF), and about 200,000 people in the United States are estimated to be affected by IPF; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, pulmonary fibrosis is often misdiagnosed and under diagnosed, and a need has been identified to 
increase wide-ranging awareness and detection of this imperceptible disorder; and 
 
WHEREAS, established in 2000, the Pulmonary Fibrosis Foundation is a nonprofit organization that maintains 
a global mission to serve as the trusted resource for the pulmonary fibrosis community by raising awareness, 
providing disease education, and funding research; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pulmonary Fibrosis Foundation will unify patients, caregivers, medical professionals, and the 
general public, by sharing and providing the latest information about advancements alongside all of the work 
still to be done within the global pulmonary fibrosis community. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Palmer, Alaska, 
do herby recognize the need for heightened Pulmonary Fibrosis Awareness, encourage our citizens to gain a 
better understanding of the disease, and declare September, 2018, as Pulmonary Fibrosis Awareness Month 
in the City of Palmer. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the seal of the City of Palmer to be affixed 
on this 11th day of September, 2018.      
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
       Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 

Page 21 of 79



Page 22 of 79



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

1
Public Safety Building:   Repair 
several subfloor structural issues in 
the Booking and PreTrial 
Confinement Areas and complete 
several finishing upgrades, in the 
same area, as required by current 
lease agreement

$141,000 remaining in state 
grant funds for public safety 

building improvements
TBD

RFP out to bid for Engineering services 
to provide inspection and assessment, 
prepare engineering plans, 
specifications, cost estimates and 
bidding assistance. 

a Engineer and CA Support With PND Engineers for Fee 
Proposal 9Feb18 $44,852.00 Approved

b Engineer's Estimate and Bid Docs August $150,000.00 Bid for council review-Sept 11 mtg

c Construction commences September

P
age 23 of 79



Project Description Estimated Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

2 Airport Maintenance-Apron and 
Taxiway repairs and resurfacing  $                                  500,000.00 October AIP Grant Funded

a Construction Mobilization August Completed
b Taxiway closures Aug-Oct On Going
d Final items completed October
r Project Completion November

P
age 24 of 79



Project Description Estimated 
Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

3 Install video cameras to 
monitor city assets $75,000.00 Fall 2018

Developing Policy and 
recommended locations for council 
approval

a Policy Review/Approval March 2018 Completed Part of City Manager Report March 
13

b Install Beta system September Site Survey-Line of Site for wireless

c Install remaining system TBD TBD

P
age 25 of 79



Project Description Estimated 
Budget/Cost Planned Completion Status Expenditures Comments

4 Install new city signs 
(facilities)

$10,000 (initial 
budget for signs) May 2019

a VIC On Order
b City Hall On Order
c Library TBD
d PPD TBD
e CD/Fire Training Area TBD
f Parks TBD

P
age 26 of 79



 
 
 
 
 
TO: Palmer City Council 
FROM: Norma I. Alley, MMC   
SUBJECT: City Clerk’s Report for the September 11, 2018, Council Meeting 
 

1. Boards & Commissions Attendance Spreadsheets 
 
The monthly attendance spreadsheets are attached for: 

a. AAC 
b. BED 
c. PRCRAB 
d. P&ZC 

 
2. October 2, 2018, Regular Election Update 

 
 Important Election Dates: 

• Early Voting: September 17 - October 1 
o MSB: M-F from 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
o DOE:  

 September 17 – September 29 
• M-F from 9:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
• Sat. from 10:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 

 October 1:  
• 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

• Last Day to Request an Absentee Ballot: September 25 
• Canvass Board: October 5 at 2:00 p.m. in City Hall Council Chambers 
• Certification of Election: October 8 at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall 

 
3. Tentative Upcoming Meetings 

 

Tentative Future Meeting Schedule 

Meeting Date Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

Sept 25 Regular 7 pm  

Oct 8 Special  6 pm Election Certification 

Oct 9 Regular 7 pm  

Oct 16 Special 6 pm 1st Budget Public Hearing 

Oct 23 Special 6 pm Budget 

Oct 23 Regular 7 pm  

Oct 30 Special 6 pm Budget 

Nov 6 Special 6 pm Budget 
 

Norma I. Alley, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
  
  

Phone: (907) 745-3271 
Direct: (907) 761-1321 

Fax: (907) 761-1340 
  

231 W. Evergreen Ave. 
Palmer, Alaska 99645-6952 

www.cityofpalmer.org  
  

  

Page 27 of 79



City of Palmer 
Airport Advisory Commission Members 

 
PMC 2.25.020. There is created a city airport advisory commission which shall consist of seven members. 
 

Seat Board Member Term 
Expires 

A John Lee Oct. 2019 
B Kenneth More Oct. 2019 
C Jeff Helmericks Oct. 2020 
D Andrew Weaver Oct. 2018 
E Joyce Momarts Oct. 2020 
F Shannon Jardine Oct. 2019 
G Allan Linn Oct. 2018 

 
PMC 2.25.140.B. Cause for removal. In addition, a board member may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The board member is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The board member 
is absent from six regular meetings. 
 

2018 Attendance Record 
    

Board Member Jan 
* 

Feb Mar Apr May June 
* 

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Lee             
More        E     
Helmericks             
Weaver    E E   E     
Momarts    E         
Jardine        E     
Linn             

 
2017 Attendance Record 

    
Board Member Jan Feb Mar Apr May 

* 
June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

* 
Lee             
More             
Helmericks U            
Weaver    E      E   
Momarts E            
Jardine       E      
Linn             

 
  
* Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 - Present 

E - Excused 
U - Unexcused Absence 
V - Vacant

 
S:\CityClerk\Boards and Commissions\AAC\Attendance Reports\Attendance Report AAC 2018-06.docx 

Page 28 of 79



City of Palmer 
Board of Economic Development Members 

 
PMC 2.30.010.A. There is created a city board of economic development which shall consist of seven members. 
 

Seat Board Member Term Expires 
A Barbara Hunt Oct. 2020 
D Christopher Chappel Oct. 2018 
B Peter Christopher Oct. 2019 
E Janet Kincaid Oct. 2019 
C Lorie Koppenberg Oct. 2018 
F Kelly Turney Oct. 2020 
G Dusty Silva Oct. 2018 
CC Richard Best Oct. 2018 
PZC Not Yet Appointed Oct. 2018 

 
PMC 2.30.140.B. Cause for removal. In addition, a board member may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The board member is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The board member 
is absent from six regular meetings. 

2018 Attendance Record 
 
Board Member Jan Feb Mar Mar 

** 
Apr 
* 

May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Chappel   U E     E     
Christopher   U    E  E     
Hunt              
Kincaid  E            
Koppenberg        E      
Turney E              
Silva        E      
Best      E        

 
2017 Attendance Record 

 
Board Member Jan Feb Mar Mar 

** 
Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct 

* 
Nov Dec 

* 
Chappel        E      
Christopher    E   E E    U  
Hunt              
Kincaid  E       E     
Koppenberg   E    E   E    
Turney              
Silva              
Best              

   
* Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 – Present  

E – Excused Absence 
U – Unexcused Absence 
V – Vacant

 
S:\CityClerk\Boards and Commissions\BED\Attendance Reports\Attendance Report BED 2018-07.docx 

Page 29 of 79



City of Palmer 
Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory  

Board Members 
 

PMC 2.22.010.A. There is created a city board for parks, recreation and cultural resources which shall consist of seven 
members. 
 

Seat Board Member Term Expires 
A Stephanie Allen Oct. 2020 
B Jo Ehmann Oct. 2018 
C Heather Kelley Oct. 2020 
D Shannon Connelly Oct. 2019 
E Denise Christopher Oct. 2020 
F Meggie Aube-Trammell Oct. 2018 
G Sally Pollen Oct. 2019 

 
PMC 2.22.140.B. Cause for removal. In addition, a board member may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The board member is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The board member 
is absent from six regular meetings. 

2018 Attendance Record 
    

Board Member Jan Feb Feb 
** 

Mar 
 

Apr May 
 

June 
* 

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Allen         U     
Aube-Trammell E             
Christopher      E  E      
Connelly              
Ehmann    U          
Kelley              
Pollen U       U U     

 
2017 Attendance Record 

    
Board 
Member 

Jan Feb Mar 
 

Mar 
** 

Apr May 
* 

June July July 
** 

Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 
* 

Allen E   E      E E    
Aube-
Trammell 

              

               
Connelly          E     
Ehmann       E E E      
               
Pollen               

 
  * Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 – Present  

E – Excused Absence 
U – Unexcused Absence 
V – Vacant 

S:\CityClerk\Boards and Commissions\PRCRAB\Attendance Reports\Attendance Report PRCRAB 2018-06.docx 

Page 30 of 79



City of Palmer 
Planning & Zoning Advisory Commission Members 

 
PMC 2.20.010.A. There is created a city planning and zoning commission which shall consist of seven members who shall 
be nominated by the mayor and confirmed by the city council. All members must be residents of the city. 
 

Seat Commission Member Term Expires 
A Gena Ornquist Oct. 2020 
B Richard Benedetto Oct. 2019 
C Andrew Corbin Oct. 2018 
D Kristy Thom Bernier Oct. 2019 
E Dan Lucas Oct. 2020 
F David Petty Oct. 2018 
G Rhonda Wohlbach Oct. 2018 

 
PMC 2.20.321.C. Cause for removal. In addition, a commissioner may be removed by the council if, during any 12-month 
period while in office: 1) The commissioner is absent from three regular meetings without excuse; or 2) The commissioner 
is absent from six regular meetings. 

2018 Attendance Record 
 
Commissioner Jan Feb Mar 

* 
Apr 
** 

Apr May Jun 
* 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 
* 

Benedetto E             
Corbin              
Lucas              
Ornquist    E E    E     
Petty              
Thom Bernier         E     
Wohlbach              

 
2017 Attendance Record 

 
Commissioner Jan Feb Mar Apr 

** 
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

* 
Benedetto              
              
Lucas  *            
Ornquist  *         E   
Petty  *            
Thom Bernier  *   E  E   E    
              

  
* Meeting Cancelled  
** Special Meeting 
 – Present  

E – Excused Absence 
U – Unexcused Absence 
V – Vacant

 
S:\CityClerk\Boards and Commissions\PZC\Attendance Reports\Attendance Report PZC 2018-06.docx 

Page 31 of 79



Page 32 of 79



Mayor’s Memo 
               Council Meeting report -Sept 11, 2018 

              UP COMING EVENTS 

 

  

    Mayor/Manager meeting – Sept 20 Palmer 

             Japanese Students – Sept. 17 honorary certificates 

 Agenda Setting Meeting –  Sept 13 and Sept 27 
 

 Radio – Mayor – September 21 
 
 

 Job Corp Workforce luncheon – October 25 
 

 October 4 – Mat Su College Anniversary 
 

 Community Luncheon – Sept. 27 
 

 Potato Bowl – September 28 
 

 City of Palmer Election October 2 – BE SURE TO 
VOTE 
 

 Greater Palmer Chamber Fund Raiser – October 13 
– government  
 

 

ENDING ITEMS  

 Flag Pole by Library,  
 Electric stands on South Alaska,  
 tennis courts request,  
 Rotary Daron Park,   
 4 Way Stop Inner and Outer Springer,  

 

 

Edna DeVries  Mayor 

Page 33 of 79



Page 34 of 79



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 18-020 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 18-020 

 
Subject:  Appropriating $61,000.00 for Public Safety Building Repair and Related Improvements and 
Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a Contract with Goertz Construction, Inc. for the 
Repair and Improvements to the Public Safety Building in an Amount Not to Exceed $150,000.00 
 
Agenda of: September 25, 2018 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    

X  Finance  

 08/27/18 
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 150,000.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
X Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 150,000.00 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 

X 
Budgeted 

Line item(s): 
DCCED Grant ($73,000), Jail Repair and Maintenance ($4,000) 
Trooper Bldg. Repair and Maintenance ($3,000) 

X Not budgeted  GF 01-01-70-6078; 08-00-00-3673; 08-10-15-6226 ($61,000) 
 
 

Director of Finance Signature:  

Page 35 of 79



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 18-020 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Resolution No. 18-020 
 Public Safety Bid 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The public safety building has been identified as needing immediate repairs to the flooring that has failed 
in several areas.  This includes several rotted joists and other areas of the subfloor that need 
repair/replacement. 
 
An invitation to bid was solicited and Goertz Construction, Inc was the most responsible proposer of 1 bid 
received. 
 
This project includes sub flooring and flooring repair, carpet and tile replacement, and mold abatement.  
 
DCCED Grant 15-DC-130 Public Safety Building Repairs has $88,966 remaining, and will be utilized for 
this project.  Additional funding from the General Fund in the amount of $61,000 is required to fund the 
contract. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 18-020 Appropriating $61,000.00 for Public Safety Building Repair and Related 
Improvements and Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Execute a Contract with Goertz 
Construction, Inc. for the Repair and Improvements to the Public Safety Building in an Amount Not to 
Exceed $150,000.00 
 
 

Page 36 of 79



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 18-020 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 18-020 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Appropriating $61,000.00 for Public Safety 
Building Repair and Related Improvements and Authorizing the City Manager to 
Negotiate and Execute a Contract with Goertz Construction, Inc. for the Repair and 
Improvements to the Public Safety Building in an Amount Not to Exceed $150,000.00 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer, Alaska ("City'') is a home rule city and, under Section 11 of 
Article X of the Alaska Constitution, may exercise all legislative power not prohibited by law or 
the Charter of the City, and the City has determined that the matter set forth in this resolution is 
not prohibited by law or the Charter; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer owns and maintains the Palmer Public Safety Building; and 
 
WHEREAS, an inspection, design and construction administration contract for the repair 

and related improvements of the public safety building was approved by the City Council in MRCH 
2018; and 

 
WHEREAS, the need for building maintenance repair and related improvements are a 

priority to maintain a safe and efficient public building for the occupants and visitors; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer solicited bids for the repair and related improvements and 

the most responsible bid was received from Goertz Construction, Inc. in the amount of 
$150,000.00. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Palmer City Council to appropriate $61,000.00 

for the Palmer Public Safety Building repair and related improvements and authorizing the City 
Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Goertz Construction, Inc. for the repair and 
improvements to the Palmer Public Safety Building in an amount not to exceed $150,000.00. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2018. 
 
 
 

________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager 
Public Hearing: September 11, 2018 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 37 of 79



Page 38 of 79



Page 39 of 79



Page 40 of 79



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 18-021 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 18-021 

Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Accept and Execute a Grant in the Amount of $487,200.00 
from the Federal Aviation Administration for Airport Snow Removal Equipment Purchase, Appropriating 
$503,700.00 for Airport Snow Removal Equipment, and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Two 
Contracts for the Purchase of Snow Removal Equipment for Airport Operations with NC Machine in the 
Amount of $266,920.83 and Bob’s Services in the Amount of $247,784.25 

Agenda of: September 11, 2018 

Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________
☐ Defeated

Originator Information: 

Originator: City Manager 
Department Review: 

Route to: Department Director: Signature: Date: 
Community Development 

X Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

Approved for Presentation By: 
Signature: Remarks: 

City Manager 
City Attorney 
City Clerk 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 
 

514,705.08 

This legislation (√): 
X Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 487,200.00 
X Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 514,705.08 

Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
Has no fiscal impact 

Funds are (√): 

X Budgeted Line item(s): 30-30-10-6225 & 30-30-10-6253 Matching Funds ($16,150.08) 

X Not budgeted Additional Matching funds $16,500.00       
FAA Grant $487,200.00 ($503,700.00 total) 

 

Director of Finance Signature: 

Page 41 of 79



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 18-021 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
 Resolution No. 18-021 
 FAA Grant Offer 
 NC Machinery Quote for CAT 950M Wheeled Loader and attachments $266,920.83 
 Bob’s Services, Inc. for the Snow Blower and attachments $247,784.25 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
This airport is currently utilizing a 22 year old S & S snow blower and a 23 year old Case wheeled loader 
to aid in its snow removal efforts.  Both pieces of equipment are well aged, were not FAA funded and the 
snow blower manufacturer has gone out of business some time ago, making repairs and obtaining spare 
parts difficult to complete timely.  The airport anticipated applying for an AIP grant in 2018 for a new 
snow blower and box blade for $300K and then a new wheeled loader in 2020 for $575K.  Combining the 
purchases to this year and taking advantage of SOA purchasing contracts already in place, will save the 
FAA and the COP an anticipated additional $300K.  Due to the age of the equipment currently in use and 
the lack of spare parts for the snow blower, the purchase is critical and timely.  This purchase will also 
free up both pieces currently in use, as backup to the Cities existing equipment.  
 
For the 2018 budget year, the City Council approved matching capital equipment funding for anticipated 
snow removal equipment purchases of $10,750.00 to be used in conjunction with left over matching funds 
from the 2017 Rehabilitation & Repaving of Runway 16/34 project.  It is estimated that the City will have 
$5400.08 in remaining matching funds and needs an additional $16,500.00 to complete our total match 
requirement of $32,482.08 or (06.25%).  Our total matching funds will be used to match the FAA Grant 
offer of $487,200.00 or (93.75%).  
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 18-021 Authorizing the City Manager to Accept and Execute a Grant in the Amount 
of $487,200.00 from the Federal Aviation Administration for the Airport Snow Removal Equipment 
Purchase, Appropriating $503,700.00 for Airport Snow Removal Equipment, and Authorizing the City 
Manager to Execute Two Contracts for the Purchase of Needed Snow Removal Equipment for Airport 
Operations with NC Machine for $266,920.83 and Bob’s Services for $247,784.25. 
 
 

Page 42 of 79



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 18-021 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Resolution No. 18-021 

 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Authorizing the City Manager to Accept and 
Execute a Grant in the Amount of $487,200.00 from the Federal Aviation 
Administration for Airport Snow Removal Equipment Purchase, Appropriating 
$503,700.00 for Airport Snow Removal Equipment, and Authorizing the City Manager 
to Execute Two Contracts for the Purchase of Snow Removal Equipment for Airport 
Operations with NC Machine in the Amount of $266,920.83 and Bob’s Services in the 
Amount of $247,784.25 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer, Alaska ("City'') is a home rule city and, under Section 11 of 
Article X of the Alaska Constitution, may exercise all legislative power not prohibited by law or 
the Charter of the City, and the City has determined that the matter set forth in this resolution is 
not prohibited by law or the Charter; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer maintains and operates the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer 

Municipal Airport; and 
 
WHEREAS, an Airport Layout Plan has been developed by the City and approved by the 

FAA for the Warren “Bud” Woods Palmer Municipal Airport; and 
 
WHEREAS, the need for snow removal and airport safety are a priority with the FAA; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer applied for FAA grant funds of up to $487,200.00 for the 

federal portion of the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Palmer solicited quotes through State of Alaska purchasing 

contracts for the snow removal equipment for the amount of $514,705.08.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Airport Sponsor Assurances have been reviewed by the City of Palmer. 
 

  

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager 
Public Hearing: September 11, 2018 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 43 of 79



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 18-021 Page 2 of 2 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Palmer City Council to Authorize the City 
Manager to Accept and Execute a Grant in the amount of $487,200.00 from the Federal Aviation 
Administration for Airport Snow Removal Equipment Purchase, Appropriate $503,700.00 for 
Airport Snow Removal Equipment, and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Two Contracts 
for the Purchase of Needed Snow Removal Equipment for Airport Operations with NC Machine for 
$266,920.83 and Bob’s Services for $247,784.25. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Norma I. Alley, MMC, City Clerk 
 

Page 44 of 79



Page 45 of 79



Page 46 of 79



Page 47 of 79



Page 48 of 79



Page 49 of 79



Page 50 of 79



Page 51 of 79



Page 52 of 79



Page 53 of 79



Page 54 of 79



Page 55 of 79



Page 56 of 79



Page 57 of 79



Page 58 of 79



Page 59 of 79



Page 60 of 79



Page 61 of 79



Page 62 of 79



Page 63 of 79



Page 64 of 79



Page 65 of 79



Page 66 of 79



Page 67 of 79



Page 68 of 79



Page 69 of 79



Page 70 of 79



Page 71 of 79



Page 72 of 79



Page 73 of 79



Page 74 of 79



Page 75 of 79



 Quote 202460-01 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
August 22, 2018 
 
CITY OF PALMER 
 
231 W EVERGREEN AVE 
PALMER, Alaska 99645-6952 
 
Attention: GREG WICKHAM 
 
 

 
 
 

RE: Quote 202460-01 
 
Dear Greg Wickham,     
 
 
 
We would like to thank you for your interest in our company and our products, and are pleased to quote the following for your 
consideration. 
 
 
One (1) New Caterpillar Model: 950M with all standard equipment in addition to the specifications listed below: 
 
STOCK NUMBER: TBD - NEW               SERIAL NUMBER: TBD - NEW                YEAR: 2019                 SMU: NEW 
 
 

Page 76 of 79



 Quote 202460-01 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS 
950M WHEEL LOADER  STANDARD PRECLEANER  
 REGIONAL PACKAGE  STANDARD AIR INLET RAIN CAP  
STANDARD PACKAGE  BASIC + FENDERS  
STANDARD LIFT LINKAGE  NON-METALLIC HOOD  
COUNTERWEIGHT, 960KG  STANDARD SOUND SUPPRESSION  
AXLES, LOCK FRONT / OPEN REAR, 
ECOLOGY DRAINS  QUICK COUPLER READY  

4 VALVE HYDRAULICS W/ RIDE CONTROL  MANUAL LUBRICATION  
STANDARD HYDRAULIC OIL  CB RADIO READY  
COLD STARTING PACKAGE (120V)  1 PAPER SET PARTS AND SERVICE MANUALS  
PREMIUM LED LIGHTS  ON SITE OPERATOR TRAINING  
STEERING WHEEL W/ SECONDARY 
STEERING  CAT ET - 1 YEAR RENEWAL ONLY, NOT A NEW SUBSCRIPTION  

MANUAL DIFFERENTIAL  NEW MACHINE PREP PER AKDOT CA1999 - WHELEN INSTALL, COLD 
WEATHER PREP, ATTACHMENT INSTALL  

HEATED CAB TRIM  WINTER COVERS  
SINGLE AXIS LEVERS W/FNR, 4 VALVE  SPARE TIRE / RIM - MOUNTED  
3'' SEAT BELT  WHELEN AKDOT STROBE LIGHT KIT  
PRODUCT LINK, SATELLITE PLE631  PSM AKDOT WLKAT COUPLER  
COOLING CORES, 9 FPI  PSM GENERAL PURPOSE BUCKET  
STANDARD FAN  PSM SNOW BUCKET  
-58F ANTIFREEZE  PSM MULTI-PUPOSE HEAVY DUTY V-PLOW  
TIRES, 23.5R25 BRIDESTONE VJT * L3    
 
 

Page 77 of 79



 Quote 202460-01 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

 

NC Machinery – AKDOT 
Contract Award CA1999 - AIP 
Loaders 

   Lot 2 Description Spec   Total 
1 4.0 CY Wheel Loader  Caterpillar 950M   $           211,896  $ 211,896.00  
0 Auto Lube System 7  $               8,541   $                -    
1 General Purpose Bucket 9.2  $               9,037   $     9,037.43  
0 Heavy-Duty Bucket w/ G.E.T. 9.3  $             15,370   $                -    
1 Snow Bucket 9.4  $             11,845   $   11,844.90  
1 Multi-Purpose Heavy Duty Plow 9.5  $             20,193   $   20,192.50  
0 Dual-Carbide Cutting Edges   $               1,435   $                -    
0 Pallet Forks, 8 Foot 9.6  $             10,096   $                -    
1 Training 10  $                     -     $                -    
1 Diagnostic Software 11.1  $               1,200   $     1,200.00  
1 Telematics 11.11  $                     -     $                -    

    Purchase Order Sub -Total  $ 254,170.83  

 
Additional item not included in Contract: 

    Freight FOB Palmer     $12,750.00  

   
PO Total:  $ 266,920.83  

     

 

*** Adjusted Diagnostic software to only include the 1 year renewal cost. Not a new 
subscription. 

     9/1/16 Price Increase 2% 
   7/11/17 Price Increase 2.5% 
   7/1/18 Price Increase 1.5% 
   

 
*Includes spare tire and rim* 

   
 

All attachments are PSM 
    

 
WARRANTY 
Standard Warranty: 1 YEAR NEW CAT MACHINE WARRANTY - TECHNICIAN TRAVEL TIME AND MILEAGE NOT INCLUDED 
Extended Warranty: ADDITIONAL WARRANTY AVAILABLE – SEE REP FOR CUSTOM QUOTE 

 
F.O.B/TERMS: PALMER, AK 
 
 
 
Accepted by___________________________________ on ____________________  
 
 
                                                                              ______________________________ 
                                                                                           Signature 
 
We wish to thank you for the opportunity of quoting your equipment needs. This quotation is valid for 30 days, after which time we 
reserve the right to re-quote. If there are any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Steven Fisher 
Cell: 907-748-7540 
Machine Sales Representative  
SFisher@NCMachinery.com 

Page 78 of 79



Quote

Sold To: Ship To:

City of Palmer
231 W. Evergreen Ave.
Palmer, AK  99645

City of Palmer
231 W. Evergreen Ave.
Palmer, AK  99645

Page: 1

Order Number:

Order Date:

Salesperson:

Customer Number:

0064128

8/20/2018

0600

00-CP

Confirm To: DOUG 745-0205 SHOP 745-3925

Customer P.O. Ship VIA

Item Number Price AmountDescription

WAUSAU MP318

Comment

(907) 863-0752

Description

*SOA CONTRACT snow blower contract CA2090-18 0.000.000.00

SEMP-318 WAUSAU MP318 LOADER MT BLOWER 228,784.00228,784.001.00

SEEDGE CUTTING EDGE STD 265.25265.251.00

SEBUMPER WAUSAU MP318 SIDE BUMPER 500.00500.001.00

SECHUTE MP318 SPOT CASTING CHUTE 10,950.0010,950.001.00

SETRAINING ON SITE TRAINING 1,875.001,875.001.00

FREIGHT FOB PALMER SHOP

Net Order: 242,374.25

Less Discount: 0.00

Freight: 5,410.00

Sales Tax: 0.00

247,784.25Order Total:

Page 79 of 79


	2018-0911 Agenda
	Ord. 18-006 Title 17 Short Term Rentals
	2018-0814 Council Minutes
	Proclamation 
	Managers Report 
	Clerk Report 
	Mayors Report 
	Res. 18-020 PSB Improvements
	Res. 18-0021 FAA Grant and Snow Removal Equpt Purchase



